
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Wednesday, 25th September, 2019
Time: 6.00 pm.
Venue: Training and Conference Suite, First Floor, 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.
Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency.

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting.

5.  MINUTES 3 - 5

For Members to approve the Minutes of the meeting held on the 25th 
July 2019.

6.  EXTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER 6 - 29

For Members to receive External Audits Annual Audit Letter for the 
year ended 31st Mach 2019.

7.  INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 1 REPORT 2019/20 30 - 43

For the Committee to receive Internal Audit Quarter 1 report (2019/20).

8.  RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q1 2019/20 44 - 57

Members are asked to receive and review Risk Management activity in 

Public Document Pack



quarter one 2019/20.

Audit and Governance Committee Members
Councillor Ali Ahmed Councillor Sultan Ali
Councillor James Gartside Councillor Aftab Hussain
Councillor Peter Malcolm Councillor Donna Martin E
Councillor Kathleen Nickson Councillor Aasim Rashid
Ann Taylor Andrew Underdown
Councillor Donna Williams



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Thursday, 25 July 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Malcolm (Chair); Councillors Sultan, 
James Gartside, Martin, Nickson, Rashid and Williams

OFFICERS: Ian Corbridge – Head of Internal Audit, Stuart Smith – Head of 
Corporate Finance, Elaine Newsome– Head of Governance and John 
Addison – Governance and Committee Services

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: D. Watson (Mazars)

11 APOLOGIES

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hussain, Ali, K Murray 
(External Auditor) and Mr. A. Underdown (Independent Person).

12 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interests.

13 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business

14 ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS

There were no items for the exclusion of the press and public.

15 MINUTES

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held 
8th April 2019 and the notes of the meeting held on the 17th June 2019 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

16 EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS REPORT

The Council’s External Auditor’s, presented a report that highlighted the key 
matters arising from their audit of Rochdale Borough Council's financial 
statements for the year ended 31st March 2019 in accordance with the 
requirements of International Standard on Auditing (UK & Ireland) 260, and 
the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

Members were reminded that under the Audit Commission's Code of Audit 
Practice the External Auditors were required to report whether, in their 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



opinion, the Council's financial statements presented a true and fair view of 
the financial position and expenditure and income for the year and whether 
the statements had been prepared properly in accordance with the CIPFA 
Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting.

The External Auditors were also required to consider other information 
published together with the audited financial statements and whether it was 
consistent with the financial statements and in line with required guidance and 
whether the Council had made proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

It was reported that the External Auditors could offer an unqualified opinion on 
the accounts, that the accounts had been produced to a good standard and 
that there were no control issues to report,

RESOLVED

That the Findings Report from External Audit be noted.

17 ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Head of Governance informed the Committee that the Council was 
required under Regulation 4(3) of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to 
produce an Annual Governance Statement (AGS) to accompany the Annual 
Statement of Accounts which must be signed by the Leader of the Council, 
Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) and the 
Monitoring Officer.

The purpose of the AGS process was to provide a continuous review of the 
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control and risk management systems 
so as to give assurance on their effectiveness and/or to produce a 
management action plan to address identified weaknesses in either process. 
It was noted that for 2018/2019 the AGS had been completely rewritten to 
offer further assurances.

The Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 was 
submitted for approval, together with the annual audit opinion from the Chief 
Internal Auditor, the external review and inspection reports and an action plan 
to address issues raised and ensures that there is continuous improvement in 
the governance 

RESOLVED

That the Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31st March 2019 
be approved.

18 STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2018/19

The Committee considered a report of the Chief Finance Officer that sought 
approval of the Council’s audited statement of accounts for 2018/19. It was 

Page 4



noted that once approved there was a statutory requirement for the accounts 
to be published by 30th September 2019.

It was reported that the unaudited statement of accounts for 2018/19 had 
been approved by the Director of Resources on the 31st May 2019 and made 
available for public inspection up to 12th July 2019, during which time 
questions and objections could be received by the District Auditor. As a 
consequence of the audit undertaken by the Council’s external auditors, 
Mazars LLP, a small number of changes to the statement of accounts, 
detailed within the submitted report, had been made in agreement with the 
external auditors.

The Statement of Accounts 2018/19, together with the management 
representation letter to the Council’s External Auditors expressing the 
Council’s opinion that the financial statements gave a true and fair view, were 
contained within the submitted report.

RESOLVED

That the audited Statement of Accounts 2018/19 and the Management 
Representation letter be approved.

Page 5



Audit Completion Report
Rochdale Borough Council
Year ending 31 March 2019

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



CONTENTS

1. Executive summary

2. Significant findings

3. Internal control recommendations

4. Summary of misstatements

5. Value for Money conclusion

Appendix A – Draft management representation letter

Appendix B – Draft auditor’s report

Appendix C – Independence

Our reports are prepared in the context of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of auditors and audited bodies’ and the ‘Appointing Person Terms of Appointment’ issued 

by Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited. 

Reports and letters prepared by appointed auditors and addressed to the Council are prepared for the sole use of the Council and we take no responsibility to any 

member or officer in their individual capacity or to any third party.

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an international advisory and accountancy group. Mazars LLP is registered by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 

England and Wales.

1
Page 7



Mazars LLP

One St Peter’s Square

Manchester

M2 3DE

Members of the Audit and Governance Committee

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale

OL16 1XU

16 July 2019

Dear Members

Audit Completion Report – Year ended 31 March 2019

We are pleased to present our Audit Completion Report for the year ended 31 March 2019. The purpose of this document is

to summarise our audit conclusions.

The scope of our work, including identified significant audit risks and other areas of management judgement, was outlined in

our Audit Strategy Memorandum which we presented on 17 December 2018. We have reviewed the significant audit risks, key

audit matters and other areas of management judgement included in our Audit Strategy Memorandum and have considered

an additional area of management judgement as part of the audit: the methodology and assumptions underpinning the

Council’s valuation of its investment in Manchester Airport Holdings Limited.

We would like to express our thanks for the assistance of your team during our audit.

If you would like to discuss any matters in more detail then please do not hesitate to contact me on 0161 238 9248.

Yours faithfully

Karen Murray

Mazars LLP

Mazars LLP is the UK firm of Mazars, an integrated international advisory and accountancy organisation. Mazars LLP is a limited liability partnership 

registered in England and Wales with registered number OC308299 and with its registered office at Tower Bridge House, St Katharine’s Way, London 

E1W 1DD.

We are registered to carry on audit work in the UK and Ireland by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Details about our audit 

registration can be viewed at www.auditregister.org.uk under reference number C001139861.

VAT number: 839 8356 73

Mazars LLP – One St Peter’s Square, Manchester, M2 3DE

Tel: 0161 238 9248 – Fax: 0161 238 9201 – www.mazars.co.uk

Page 8



Purpose of this report and principal conclusions
The Audit Completion Report sets out the findings from our audit of Rochdale Borough Council (‘the Council’) for the year ended 31

March 2019, and forms the basis for discussion at the Audit and Governance Committee meeting on 26 July 2019.

The detailed scope of our work as your appointed auditor for 2018/19 is set out in the National Audit Office’s (NAO) Code of Audit

Practice. Our responsibilities and powers are derived from the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and, as outlined in our Audit

Strategy Memorandum, our audit has been conducted in accordance with International Standards of Auditing (UK) and means we focus

on audit risks that we have assessed as resulting in a higher risk of material misstatement.

Sections 2 and 5 of this report outline the detailed findings from our work on the financial statements and our conclusion on the Council’s

arrangements to achieve economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Section 2 also includes our conclusions on the

audit risks and areas of management judgement in our Audit Strategy Memorandum, which include:

• Management override of control

• Revenue recognition

• Valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment;

• Valuation of Defined Benefit Pension Liability; and

• Valuation of investment in Manchester Airport Holdings Limited.

Status of our work
As we outline on the following page, our work is substantially complete. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the outstanding work,

at the time of issuing this report we have the following conclusions:

The 2014 Act requires us to give an elector, or any representative of the elector, the opportunity to 

question us about the accounting records of the Council and to consider any objection made to the 

accounts. At the time of drafting this report we have not received any questions or objections relating to 

2018/19.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

3

We anticipate issuing an unqualified opinion, without modification, on the financial statements.  Our 

proposed audit opinion is included in the draft auditor’s report in Appendix B.

We anticipate concluding that the Council had proper arrangements in place to secure economy, 

efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Our draft auditor’s report, including proposed 

conclusion, is provided in Appendix B 

We anticipate completing our work on your WGA submission, in line with the group instructions issued by 

the NAO, by the deadline of 13 September 2019.  

Opinion on 

the financial 

statements

Whole of 

Government 

Accounts 

(WGA)

Value for 

Money 

conclusion

Wider 

powers

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 9



Status of our audit work

We have substantially completed our work on the financial statements and Value for Money conclusion for the year ended 31 March

2019. At the time of preparing this report the following matters remain outstanding:

We will provide the Audit and Governance Committee with an update in relation to these outstanding matters in a follow-up letter, prior to

signing the auditor’s report.

Our audit approach

We provided details of our intended audit approach in our Audit Strategy Memorandum in December 2018. We have since updated our

approach and consider that the valuation of the Council’s investment in Manchester Airport Holdings Limited is a significant

management judgement, although we have not identified this as a significant risk. The Council uses an external valuation expert to

determine the value of its investment, using a methodology and applying assumptions. Council officers challenge the valuation

assumptions and reach judgements on the valuation to include in the financial statements.

Materiality

We set materiality at the planning stage of the audit at £11.982m using a benchmark of 2% of Gross Operating Expenditure. Our final

assessment of materiality, based on the final financial statements and qualitative factors is £12.194m, using the same benchmark. We

set our trivial threshold (the level under which individual errors are not communicated to the Audit and Governance Committee), at

£0.366m based on 3% of overall materiality.

Misstatements and internal control recommendations

Section 3 sets out the internal control recommendations that we make, together with an update on any prior year recommendations.

Section 4 outlines the misstatements noted as part of our audit as at the time of issuing this report. If any additional misstatements are

noted on completion of the outstanding work, these will be reported to the Audit and Governance Committee in a follow-up letter.

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

4

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Audit area Status Description of outstanding matters

Payroll Response to one query raised from our sample testing of payroll transactions

PPE Revaluations Resolution of final queries in relation to the Council’s asset valuations

PPE Ownership Awaiting evidence of Council ownership for one asset in our sample

Investments Awaiting third party confirmation for one investment selected from our sample

Final Financial Statements

Following the Audit Committee on 26 July 2019 the Council will provide signed copies of 

the financial statements, annual governance statement and Management Representation 

Letter

Status

 Likely to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial statements

 Potential to result in material adjustment or significant change to disclosures within the financial statements

 Not considered likely to result in material adjustment or change to disclosures within the financial statements

Page 10



2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS

Set out below are the significant findings from our audit. These findings include:

• our audit conclusions regarding significant risks and key areas of management judgement outlined in the Audit Strategy
Memorandum;

• our comments in respect of the accounting policies and disclosures that you have adopted in the financial statements. On
page 10 we have concluded whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the financial reporting
framework and commented on any significant accounting policy changes that have been made during the year;

• any further significant matters discussed with management; and

• any significant difficulties we experienced during the audit.

Significant risks and key areas of management judgement
As part of our planning procedures we considered the risks of material misstatement in the Council’s financial statements that required
special audit consideration. Although we report identified significant risks at the planning stage of the audit in our Audit Strategy
Memorandum, our risk assessment is a continuous process and we regularly consider whether new significant risks have arisen and
how we intend to respond to these risks.

5

Significant risk

Management override of 

controls

Description of the risk

In all entities, management at various levels within an organisation are in a unique position to

perpetrate fraud because of their ability to manipulate accounting records and prepare fraudulent

financial statements by overriding controls that otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Due to

the unpredictable way in which such override could occur, we consider there to be a risk of material

misstatement due to fraud and thus a significant risk on all audits.

How we addressed this risk

We addressed this risk through performing audit work over:

• Accounting estimates impacting on amounts included in the financial statements;

• Consideration of identified significant transactions outside the normal course of business; and

• Journals recorded in the general ledger and other adjustments made in preparation of the

financial statements.

Audit conclusion

There are no significant matters arising from our work on the management override of controls.

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 11



Significant risk

Valuation of 

Property, Plant & 

Equipment

Description of the risk

The CIPFA Code requires that where assets are subject to revaluation, their year end carrying value should 

reflect the fair value at that date. The Council has adopted a rolling revaluation model which sees all land 

and buildings revalued in a four year cycle.

The valuation of Property, Plant & Equipment involves the use of a management expert (the valuer), and 

incorporates assumptions and estimates which impact materially on the reported value. There are risks 

relating to the valuation process.

As a result of the rolling programme of revaluations, there is a risk that individual assets which have not 

been revalued for up to three years are not valued at their materially correct fair value. In addition, as the 

valuations are undertaken through the year there is a risk that the fair value as the assets is materially 

different at the year end. Each year the Council undertakes a desk-top exercise, with regards to local 

property indices, to confirm the value of assets not valued in year are materially correct.

How we addressed this risk

We have: 

• Critically assessed the Council’s valuer’s scope of work, qualifications, objectivity and independence to 

carry out the Council’s programme of revaluations;

• Considered whether the overall revaluation methodology used by the Council valuer is in line with 

industry practice, social housing statutory guidance, the CIPFA Code of Practice and the Council’s 

accounting policies;

• Critically assessed the appropriateness of the underlying data and the key assumptions used in the 

valuer’s calculations;

• Assessed the movement in market indices between the revaluation dates and the year end to 

determine whether there have been material movements over that time;

• Critically assessed the treatment of the upward and downward revaluations in the Council’s financial 

statements with regards to the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice;

• Critically assessed the approach that the Council adopts to ensure that assets not subject to revaluation 

in 2018/19 are materially fairly stated; and

• Tested a sample of items of capital expenditure in 2018/19 to confirm that the additions are 

appropriately valued in the financial statements. 

Audit conclusion

Our work on this area is substantially complete, subject to resolution of our final queries. To date there are

no significant findings from our work on property, plant and equipment valuations.

6

2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 12



Significant risk

Valuation of 

Defined Benefit 

Pension Liability

Description of the risk

The net pension liability represents a material element of the Council’s balance sheet. The Council is an 

admitted body of Greater Manchester Pension Fund, which had its last triennial valuation completed as at 

31 March 2016.

The valuation of the Local Government Pension Scheme relies on a number of assumptions, most notably 

around the actuarial assumptions, and actuarial methodology which results in the Council’s overall 

valuation.

There are financial assumptions and demographic assumptions used in the calculation of the Council’s 

valuation, such as the discount rate, inflation rates and mortality rates. The assumptions should also reflect 

the profile of the Council’s employees, and should be based on appropriate data. The basis of the 

assumptions is derived on a consistent basis year to year, or updated to reflect any changes.

There is a risk that the assumptions and methodology used in valuing the Council’s pension obligation are 

not reasonable or appropriate to the Council’s circumstances. This could have a material impact to the net 

pension liability in 2018/19.

How we addressed this risk

We have:

• Critically assessed the competency, objectivity and independence of the Greater Manchester Pension 

Fund’s Actuary, Hymans Robertson;

• Liaised with the auditors of the Greater Manchester Pension Fund to gain assurance that the controls in 

place at the Pension Fund are operating effectively. This included the processes and controls in place 

to ensure data provided to the Actuary by the Pension Fund for the purposes of the IAS19 valuation is 

complete and accurate;

• Reviewed the appropriateness of the Pension Asset and Liability valuation methodologies applied by 

the Pension Fund Actuary, and the key assumptions included within the valuation. This included 

comparing them to expected ranges, utilising information provided by PWC, consulting actuary 

engaged by the National Audit Office;

• Agreed the data in the IAS 19 valuation report provided by the Fund Actuary for accounting purposes to 

the pension accounting entries and disclosures in the Council’s financial statements.

Audit conclusion

Two legal rulings in year relating to guaranteed minimum pensions and transitional protections have

impacted on Local Government Pension Schemes. The impact of these is not included in the Council’s

pension liability estimate.

The National Audit Office engaged its consulting actuary to provide assurance to auditors on the

appropriateness of the actuarial methodology and assumptions relating to the legal cases which impact on

the Local Government Pension Scheme. This assurance was received, and confirmed that the impact of

the legal cases on its pension liability are not material. The Council has considered this and determined

that it does not intend to amend the financial statements. We have identified this as a non-material

unadjusted audit difference.

7

2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 13



8

2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

Management

judgement

Valuation of 

investment in 

Manchester 

Airport Holdings 

Limited

Description of the management judgement

The Council uses an external valuation expert to determine the value of its investment in Manchester

Airport Holdings Limited at 31 March 2019. The valuation is determined according to a methodology and

applying assumptions. Council officers challenge the valuation assumptions and reach judgements on the

valuation to include in the financial statements.

How our audit addressed this area of management judgement

Mazars in-house valuation team reviewed the methodology and key assumptions used by management’s

expert, considering the appropriateness of the methodology and the reasonableness of the assumptions

used.

Audit conclusion

There are no significant matters arising from our work on valuation of investment in Manchester Airport

Holdings Limited.

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 14



Qualitative aspects of the Council’s accounting practices
We have reviewed the Council’s accounting policies and disclosures and concluded they comply with the requirements of the Code of

Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the Code), appropriately tailored to the Council’s circumstances.

Draft accounts were received from the Council on 31 May 2019 and were of a good quality. High quality supporting working papers have

been made available in a timely manner and these have assisted our audit progress. Council finance officers have been very helpful in

promptly answering our detailed audit queries..

Significant matters discussed with management
During the course of the audit we did not encounter any significant difficulties and we have had the full co-operation of management and

finance officers.

Significant difficulties during the audit
During the course of the audit we did not encounter any significant difficulties and we have had the full co-operation of management.

Wider responsibilities
Our powers and responsibilities under the 2014 Act are broad and include the ability to:

• issue a report in the public interest;

• make statutory recommendations that must be considered and responded to publicly;

• apply to the court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law; and

• issue an advisory notice under schedule 8 of the 2014 Act.

We have not exercised any of these powers as part of our 2018/19 audit.

The 2014 Act also gives rights to local electors and other parties, such as the right to ask questions of the auditor and the right to make

an objection to an item of account. At the date of producing this report we have not received any questions or objections during our audit

from electors.

9

2. SIGNIFICANT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 15



The purpose of our audit is to express an opinion on the financial statements. As part of our audit we have considered the internal

controls in place relevant to the preparation of the financial statements. We do this in order to design audit procedures to allow us to

express an opinion on the financial statement and not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control,

nor to identify any significant deficiencies in their design or operation.

The matters reported are limited to those deficiencies and other control recommendations that we have identified during our normal audit

procedures and that we consider to be of sufficient importance to merit being reported. If we had performed more extensive procedures

on internal control we might have identified more deficiencies to be reported or concluded that some of the reported deficiencies need

not in fact have been reported. Our comments should not be regarded as a comprehensive record of all deficiencies that may exist or

improvements that could be made.

Our findings and recommendations are set out below. We have assigned priority rankings to each of them to reflect the importance that

we consider each poses to your organisation and, hence, our recommendation in terms of the urgency of required action. In summary,

the matters arising fall into the following categories:

Priority ranking Description Number of issues

1 (high) In our view, there is potential for financial loss, damage to reputation or loss of 

information. This may have implications for the achievement of business strategic 

objectives. The recommendation should be taken into consideration by 

management immediately.

0

2 (medium) In our view, there is a need to strengthen internal control or enhance business 

efficiency. The recommendations should be actioned in the near future. 

0

3 (low) In our view, internal control should be strengthened in these additional areas when 

practicable.

0

10

3. INTERNAL CONTROL RECOMMENDATIONS

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 16



We set out below the misstatements identified for adjustment during the course of the audit, above the level of trivial threshold of

£0.366m.

The first table outlines the misstatements that were identified during the course of our audit which management has assessed as not

being material, either individually or in aggregate, to the financial statements and does not currently plan to adjust.

The second table outlines the misstatements that have been adjusted by management during the course of the audit.

Unadjusted misstatements 2018/19

11

4. SUMMARY OF MISSTATEMENTS

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement

Balance Sheet

Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000)

1 Dr: Heritage Assets

Cr: Revaluation Reserve

907

907

The Council’s art collection has been valued in year. A small number of adjustments to asset values were not included in 

the draft financial statements. As these are not material and have no impact on the Council’s reported position 

management do not intend to amend the 2018/19 financial statements, but will process the valuation changes in 2019/20.

2 Dr: Resources Income

Dr: Neighbourhoods Income

Cr: Children’s Services Expenditure

576

1,080

1,656

Our sample testing of income identified one case of internal income not being removed from the final reported position. 

The Finance team investigated further to determine the total error. This has no impact on the net reported position and is 

not material, therefore management do not intend to amend the 2018/19 financial statements.

3 Dr Net Cost of Services (Past Service Cost)

Cr Re-measurement of Pension Liability

Dr Pension Reserve

Cr Pension Liability

5,300

5,300

5,300

5,300

Total unadjusted misstatements 6,956 6,956 6,207 6,207

Page 17



Disclosure amendments

In addition to the adjustments outlined above, the Council has made a number of amendments to the disclosures in the financial

statements. These were largely to improve the context or disclosure of information in the statements including:

• Enhancing the disclosures in Note 3 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty in respect of the Council’s PFI schemes and Manchester

Airport shareholding rather include this in the Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies note (note 2). The accounts now

more clearly reflect management’s position;

• Revising Note 11 on Revaluations to separately disclose assets held at fair value and assets held at current value.

• Include a new disclosure required from 2018/19 within Note 25 to show the reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities;

• Enhancing the disclosure in Note 39 of the Council’s contingent liability in relation to loans to Manchester Airport.

12

Comprehensive Income and 

Expenditure Statement

Balance Sheet

Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000) Dr (£’000) Cr (£’000)

1 Dr: Other Operating Expenditure 

Cr: Economy Expenditure

Cr: Neighbourhoods Expenditure

30,061

21,790

8,271

The CIPFA Code requires expenditure on precepts and levies to be disclosed within Other Operating Expenditure, these 

were classified within net cost of services in the draft financial statements. The Council has amended the classification in 

both the current and prior year CIES.

4. SUMMARY OF MISSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Adjusted misstatements 2018/19

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 18



Our approach to Value for Money
We are required to form a conclusion as to whether the Council has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources.  The NAO issues guidance to auditors that underpins the work we are required to carry out in order 
to form our conclusion, and sets out the criterion and sub-criteria that we are required to consider. 

The overall criterion is that, ‘in all significant respects, the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions 
and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.’  To assist auditors in reaching a 
conclusion on this overall criterion, the following sub-criteria are set out by the NAO:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

A summary of the work we have undertaken is provided below.

Significant Value for Money risks

The NAO’s guidance requires us to carry out work to identify whether or not a risk to the Value for Money conclusion exists. Risk, in the

context of our Value for Money work, is the risk that we come to an incorrect conclusion rather than the risk of the arrangements in place

at the Council being inadequate. In our Audit Strategy Memorandum, we reported that we had identified three significant Value for

Money risks relating to health and social care integration, the financial pressures faced by the Council and the Council’s response to

OFSTED’s Inspection of Children’s Services .

The work we carried out in relation to the significant risk is outlined overleaf.

13

5. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Risk assessment

NAO Guidance

Sector-wide issues

Risk mitigation work Other procedures

Consider the work of regulators

Planned procedures to mitigate 

the risk of forming an incorrect 

conclusion on arrangements

Consider the Annual 

Governance StatementYour operational and business 

risks

Consistency review and reality 

checkKnowledge from other audit work

Page 19



Significant Value for Money risks

Our overall Value for Money conclusion
Our draft auditor’s report included in Appendix B states that we intend to issue an unqualified Value for Money conclusion for the 
2018/19 financial year.  

[Where a non-standard conclusion has been given, please provide details of the reasons for any modification here].

14

5. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION (CONTINUED)

Risk Work undertaken and findings Conclusion

Health and Social Care 

Integration

Rochdale Borough Council 

continues to work with HMR 

CCG to integrate health and 

social care across the Borough. 

The two organisations are 

embedding governance 

arrangements to ensure the 

delivery of sustainable 

improvements to the health and 

wellbeing of local residents. 

There is a significant gap in the 

pooled budget set by the two 

organisations for 2018/19 and 

beyond.

This risk links to the Council's 

arrangements for working with 

third parties to deliver its 

strategic priorities, manage risks 

effectively and maintain a sound 

system of internal control.

The Council continues to work closely with the CCG to deliver 

improvements in health and social care across the Borough. Following 

the establishment of the Better Care Fund in previous years, the Council 

and CCG expanded their joint working arrangements with the Health and 

Social Care pooled budget, covering £337m of funding across the 

Borough.

Governance arrangements for the pooled budgets are established 

through the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB), made up of Council 

and CCG representatives. The ICB received regular monitoring reports 

during the year and worked to close the initial gap of £16.7m through 

savings and efficiencies, achieving a balanced final position following 

contributions from Council and CCG reserves.

Development of the Local Care Organisation (LCO) continued in 

2018/19, and the ICB implemented a gateway review process to transfer 

service delivery to the new organisation. A project plan is in place to 

continue development of the Local Care Organisation over the coming 

year.

We conclude that for 

2018/19 the Council 

has made proper 

arrangements for 

working with third 

parties to deliver its 

strategic priorities, 

manage risks 

effectively and 

maintain a sound 

system of internal 

control.

Financial Pressures and 

Budget Gap

The Council continues to face 

significant financial pressures 

over the coming years with 

reduced funding and increasing 

demand on services. The 

Council has a forecast budget 

gap over the next five years of 

£26.5m and will need to deliver 

significant savings in order to 

address this.

This risk links to the Council's 

arrangements for sustainable 

resource deployment.

The Council set robust and balanced budgets for 2018/19 and 2019/20, 

which, although utilising reserves, does not cause a material or 

significant reduction in those reserves through the two years, and 

those reserves have been held for the purpose of supporting the 

budgetary pressures. Detailed progress reports are provided to 

Cabinet on a quarterly basis allowing for effective monitoring of 

progress against budget. However the use of reserves to support 

revenue budgets in the longer term is not sustainable, and the Council 

will need to ensure that its longer term financial sustainability does not 

deplete its reserves to unsustainably low levels.

The Council’s final reported outturn was an overspend of £2.7m. 

Although there are significant demand-led overspends in Children’s 

Services, these have been offset by underspends elsewhere in 

2018/19 and the Council is working to identify ways of mitigating the 

overspend in future years.

We conclude that for 

2018/19 the Council 

has made proper 

arrangements to deliver 

financial sustainability 

in the medium term.

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 20



Significant Value for Money risks

Our overall Value for Money conclusion
Our draft auditor’s report included in Appendix B states that we intend to issue an unqualified Value for Money conclusion for the 
2018/19 financial year.  

15

5. VALUE FOR MONEY CONCLUSION (CONTINUED)

Risk Work undertaken and findings Conclusion

Response to OFSTED’s 

Inspection of Children’s 

Services 

In March 2018 OFSTED issued 

a report on their latest inspection 

of the Council's children's 

services. The report deemed the 

service overall as requiring 

improvement and noted a 

number of areas where 

improvement could be made.

This risk links to the Council's 

arrangements for informed 

decision making through its 

governance arrangements and 

maintaining a sound system of 

internal control.

Since issuing our Audit Strategy Memorandum in December 2018, 

OFSTED have undertaken a focused visit of Rochdale’s Children’s 

Services. OFSTED published the results of their visit in February 2019, 

noting a number of improvements since their previous visit.

We noted through our review of documents that the Council’s response 

to OFSTED findings was included within the Children’s Services 

Directorate Plan in 2018/19

We conclude that for 

2018/19 the Council 

has made proper 

arrangements to 

respond to the findings 

from external 

regulators.

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 21



To be provided to us on client headed note paper

[Client address]

[Date]

Dear Karen

Rochdale Borough Council - audit for year ended 31 March 2019

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of Rochdale Metropolitan Borough Council (‘the Council’) 

for the year ended 31 March 2019 for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view in 

accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 (the Code) and applicable law.

I confirm that the following representations are made on the basis of enquiries of management and staff with relevant knowledge and experience (and, 

where appropriate, inspection of supporting documentation) sufficient to satisfy myself that I can properly make each of the following representations to 

you.

My responsibility for the financial statements and accounting information

I believe that I have fulfilled my responsibilities for the true and fair presentation and preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the Code 

and applicable law.

My responsibility to provide and disclose relevant information

I have provided you with: 

• access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the financial statements such as records, documentation and 

other material;

• additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit; and

• unrestricted access to individuals within the Council you determined it was necessary to contact in order to obtain audit evidence.

I confirm as Director of Resources that I have taken all the necessary steps to make me aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that 

you, as auditors, are aware of this information.

As far as I am aware there is no relevant audit information of which you, as auditors, are unaware.

Accounting records

I confirm that all transactions that have a material effect on the financial statements have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in 

the financial statements. All other records and related information, including minutes of all Council, Cabinet and committee meetings, have been made 

available to you. 

Accounting policies

I confirm that I have reviewed the accounting policies applied during the year in accordance with Code and International Accounting Standard 8 and 

consider these policies to faithfully represent the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the Council ‘s financial position, financial 

performance and cash flows.

[continued]

16

APPENDIX A
DRAFT MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 22



Accounting estimates, including those measured at fair value

I confirm that any significant assumptions used by the Council in making accounting estimates, including those measured at current or fair value, are 

reasonable.

Contingencies

There are no material contingent losses including pending or potential litigation that should be accrued where:

• information presently available indicates that it is probable that an asset has been impaired or a liability had been incurred at the balance sheet date; 

and

• the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

There are no material contingent losses that should be disclosed where, although either or both the conditions specified above are not met, there is a 

reasonable possibility that a loss, or a loss greater than that accrued, may have been incurred at the balance sheet date.

There are no undisclosed contingent gains which should be disclosed.

All material matters, including unasserted claims, that may result in litigation against the Council have been brought to your attention. All known actual or 

possible litigation and claims whose effects should be considered when preparing the financial statements have been disclosed to you and accounted for 

and disclosed in accordance with the Code and applicable law.

Laws and regulations

I confirm that I have disclosed to you all those events of which I am aware which involve known or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations, 

together with the actual or contingent consequences which may arise therefrom.

The Council has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect on the accounts in the event of non-compliance.

Fraud and error

I acknowledge my responsibility as Director of Resources for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to prevent and detect fraud 

and error. 

I have disclosed to you:

• all the results of my assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud;

• all knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Council involving:

• management and those charged with governance;

• employees who have significant roles in internal control; and

• others where fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

I have disclosed to you all information in relation to any allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the Council’s financial statements 

communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

Related party transactions

I confirm that all related party relationships, transactions and balances, have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with the 

requirements of the Code and applicable law.

I have disclosed to you the identity of the Council’s related parties and all related party relationships and transactions of which I am aware. 

[continued]

17

APPENDIX A
DRAFT MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 23



Future commitments

I am not aware of any plans, intentions or commitments that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and liabilities or give rise 

to additional liabilities.

Subsequent events

I confirm all events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which the Code and applicable law, require adjustment or disclosure have 

been adjusted or disclosed.

Should further material events occur after the date of this letter which may necessitate revision of the figures included in the financial statements or 

inclusion of a note thereto, I will advise you accordingly.

Going concern

To the best of my knowledge there is nothing to indicate that the Council will not continue as a going concern in the foreseeable future. The period to 

which I have paid particular attention in assessing the appropriateness of the going concern basis is not less than twelve months from the date of 

approval of the accounts.  

Unadjusted misstatements 

I confirm that the effects of the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both individually and in aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. All 

uncorrected misstatements are included in Appendix A.

Specific representations – Manchester Airport Long-Term Investment valuation

I confirm that with regards to the Council’s valuation of its Long-Term Investment in Manchester Airport Group of £52.7m, I am satisfied that the 

assumptions of future growth for the Manchester Airport Group which underpin the valuation are reasonable and appropriate.

Yours faithfully

Neil Thornton

Director of Resources

18

APPENDIX A
DRAFT MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 24



Independent auditor’s report to the members of Rochdale Borough Council

Report on the financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Rochdale Borough Council for the year ended 31 March 2019, which comprise the Comprehensive Income 

and Expenditure Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement, and notes to the financial statements, 

including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and 

the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.

In our opinion, the financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the financial position of Rochdale Borough Council as at 31st March 2019 and of its expenditure and income for the year then 

ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those 

standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the Council in accordance with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applicable to public interest 

entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have 

obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where:

the Director of Resource’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

the Director of Resources has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the 

Council’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial 

statements are authorised for issue.

Other information 

The Director of Resources is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the the Annual Governance Statement and 

information included in the Annual Financial Report and Accounts, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on 

the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material 

misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 

there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

19

APPENDIX B
DRAFT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 25



Responsibilities of the Director of Resources for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts, the Director of Resources is responsible for the preparation of 

the Statement of Accounts, which includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper practices as set out in the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of 

Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Director of 

Resources is also responsible for such internal control as the Director of Resources determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Director of Resources is required to comply with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2018/19 

and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the Council is informed of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services 

or function to another entity. The Director of Resources is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the Council to prepare 

its accounts on the going concern basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 

taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 

www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

We are required by the Code of Audit Practice to report to you if:

we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014;

we make a recommendation under section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014; or

we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under sections 28, 29 or 31 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Conclusion on Rochdale Borough Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

Conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, we 

are satisfied that, in all significant respects, Rochdale Borough Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Basis for conclusion

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General, having regard to the 

guidance on the specified criterion issued in November 2017, as to whether the Council had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 

decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General 

determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider in satisfying ourselves whether the Council put in place proper arrangements for securing 

economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2019.

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered 

necessary to form a view on whether, in all significant respects, the Council had put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources.

20

APPENDIX B
DRAFT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 26

http://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities


Responsibilities of the Council

The Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure 

proper stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements. 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

We are required under section 20(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy ourselves that the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice requires us to report to you our 

conclusion relating to proper arrangements. We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Council’s arrangements 

for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

Use of the audit report

This report is made solely to the members of Rochdale Borough Council, as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 

2014 and as set out in paragraph 44 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies published by Public Sector Audit Appointments 

Limited. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the members of the Council those matters we are required to state to them in an 

auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 

members of the Council, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Delay in certification of completion of the audit

We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have completed the work necessary to issue our assurance statement in 

respect of the Council’s Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack. We are satisfied that these matters do not have a material effect on the 

financial statements or on our conclusion on the Council’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

[Signature]

Karen Murray

For and on behalf of Mazars LLP

One St Peter’s Square

Manchester

M2 3DE

TBC July 2019

21

APPENDIX B
DRAFT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Page 27



Auditor independence

As part of our ongoing risk assessment we monitor our relationships with you to identify any new actual or perceived threats to our

independence within the regulatory or professional requirements governing us as your auditors.

We can confirm that no new threats to independence have been identified since issuing the Audit Strategy Memorandum and therefore

we remain independent.

We also confirm that we have received confirmation from our external experts regarding their independence.

Audit & non-audit fees

We reported our expected audit fees in our Audit Strategy Memorandum. Below we report the audit and non-audit fees at this, our Audit

Completion phase. We confirm that we have completed one non-audit engagement at the Council which was not reported in our Audit

Strategy Memorandum as reported in the table below.

22

APPENDIX C
INDEPENDENCE AND FEES

Executive summary Significant findings
Internal control 

recommendations
Summary of 

misstatements
Value for Money 

conclusion
Appendices

Audit fees 2018/19 (actual) 2018/19 (planned)

Rochdale Council – audit of the Council’s financial 

statements
£136,373 £136,373

Total audit fees £136,373 £136,373

Page 28



Karen Murray

Director

Phone: 0161 238 9248

Mobile: 07721 234043

Email: karen.murray@mazars.co.uk

Daniel Watson

Manager 

Phone: 0161 238 9349

Mobile: 07909 985324

Email: daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk

CONTACT

Page 29

mailto:karen.murray@mazars.co.uk
mailto:daniel.watson@mazars.co.uk


Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 25th September 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public 

Internal Audit Quarter 1 Report 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the first 
quarter of 2019/20. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or 
adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period. Furthermore, Internal Audit has completed 
23% of the agreed Audit Plan which achieves the agreed target. 

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £45,807 in identifying savings and 
overpayments during the period together with 4 sanctions comprising of one 
prosecution, one caution and two fines for fraud. 

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Internal Audit work of the management of risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in 
accordance with their work programme and overall responsibility for 
governance, to scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the first quarter of 
2019/20 on all Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal Audit 
is governed by the UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1 

Risk Based Audit Approach

10. Internal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the 
internal control environment, risk management and governance 
processes for the Council as a whole, as set out within the Internal Audit 
Charter. A risk based approach is taken within individual audit reviews, 
embracing operational and management controls and the wider 

Page 30

Agenda Item 7



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk 
identification and exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to 
manage those risks. 

In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance 
opinion on how effectively risks are being managed in the area under 
review. These opinions are as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited
A number of key risks are not managed effectively. 
The control systems in operation are in need of 
significant improvement.

Adequate
The control systems in operation are generally 
sound. However, opportunities exist to improve the 
management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to 
manage risks effectively.

In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with 
the assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a 
timely basis, any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited 
assurance will be highlighted within section 6 of this report. These will be 
subject to specific discussion and challenge by Members with senior 
officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, Internal Audit will perform a 
formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner if the due date for 
completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the Audit and 
Governance Committee with our findings.

In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and 
medium priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm 
completion once the due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation 
will be reported to the Committee for further consideration. If some of the 
recommendations have not yet been actioned, Internal Audit will request 
reasons for the delay and confirmation of a revised date by which the 
action should be completed. The current status of the implementation of 
audit recommendations as confirmed by formal follow up audits is 
highlighted within Appendix B and any key issues will be highlighted to the 
Members. Whilst in some cases implementation has not been achieved by 
the originally agreed dates, Internal Audit has received reasonable 
explanations to support the delays incurred and will continue to monitor 
progress through to the revised dates proposed by management. As such, 
there are no matters to bring to the attention of Members at this stage.

Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal 
responses to recommendations raised are received within one month of 
the issue date. Internal Audit actively follows up with management via an 
escalation process to ensure that the reports and actions are agreed in a 
timely manner. At present, there are no draft reports where responses are 
still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

Page 31



5

5.1

6

6.1

6.2

7

7.1

8

8.1

8.2

8.3

Planned Work Completed During Quarter One

Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed 
during quarter one which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance 
opinion. Key areas for improvement are summarised for each audit with 
a specific focus on any agreed actions designated as high priority.

Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up 
Audits

No audit reviews with a limited assurance opinion have been completed 
during the period.

The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B. 

Unplanned work

Charitable organisation
  (Director  – Neighbourhoods)

At the request of management, Internal Audit performed an evaluation of 
certain processes and controls within one organisation within the charitable 
sector which is in part supported by grants from RBC and which provides 
services to the community and the Borough as whole. As agreed within the 
respective terms of references, findings, conclusions and 
recommendations were fed back to the management board of the 
organisation. 

Counter Fraud Team

A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team from April to 
June 2019 is set out below.

Performance

A total of 134 fraud referrals were received in the first quarter of this 
financial year, compared to 162 from the same period in 2018/19. The main 
sources of these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the 
Partnership Enforcement Team, anonymous information and RBC 
employees. A significant number of these do not progress to formal 
investigation by the team as they are either passed to the DWP or closed 
due to apparent malicious intent or the fact that there is not enough 
information to progress the matter. 

From April to June 2019 the team achieved £45,807 in additional savings 
and overpayments. This figure derives from successful investigations into 
transactions associated with a number of Service areas including Benefits, 
Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue Badge and Adult Care, as well as 
additional income from fraud financial penalties, administrative penalties 
and court costs. 

Page 32



8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

86% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in the first quarter. 

Four sanctions were achieved in quarter one, comprising of one 
prosecution, one caution and two fines for fraud. 

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that 
have an important role to play in checking data matches that are received 
from the NFI.  

The Team have started to check data received in the 2018/2019 NFI Single 
Person Discount, Council Tax matches. The first rounds of proactive visits 
took place on 9th, 10th and 17th July 2019. Results/ outcomes will be 
reported in the next quarter.       
                                     
The NFI Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support work from 2018/2019 
has commenced. The high risk matches are currently being checked and 
sifted, as well as samples of the key reports.  To date, 11 fraud cases have 
been opened from the Council Tax Support NFI and 5 cases from the 
Housing Benefit NFI. 

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also 
provides a wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external 
bodies including immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to 
over 165 Data Protection Requests from April to June 2019, not including 
the work that is completed in the PET. 

Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each 
Monday to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, 
skills and powers from the different enforcement agencies are used to 
prevent and detect fraud within the Borough. Currently the following cross-
agency teams attend the weekly meeting: GMP – Organised Crime Team; 
Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s Services; Community 
Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public Protection; 
Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service 
officials.

The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 56 ‘police checks’ on 
Rochdale BC systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and 
absconders.   3 fraud referrals were received from the PET from April to 
June 2019 and 7 referrals are currently under investigation.   One fraud 
case was closed after a successful prosecution and two cases were closed 
with positive savings for Council Tax. Over £8,000 in fraud savings and 
overpayments were recorded from these cases.     
  
The Counter Fraud Team continues to participate in days of action and 
proactive visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council 
Tax, Business Rates, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.  The most 

Page 33



9

9.1

9.2

recent day of action was on 29th July 2019.  

Internal Audit Performance Measures

The table below shows actual performance as at 30 June 2019 against 
Internal Audit targets for the first quarter, including the actuals for 2018/19. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Year 

2018/19

Target 
Q1

2019/20

Actual 
Q1

2019/20
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding 
overheads

£229 £260 £252

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor 
(days)

208 190 190

3. Percentage of audit plan 
completed (96% for full year)

22% 22% 23%

4. Percentage of draft audit reports 
issued within 14 days of 
completion of the audit

100% 98% 100%

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of 
marks in the top two categories 
(i.e. very good & good)

100% 98% 100%

  
All performance indicators were either achieved or were ahead of target for 
the period.  

10  Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit

10.1 Internal Audit continues to undertake audit work for a number of organisations 
in accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In 2019/20 to 30 June 2019 this has generated 
income of £2,180 and has included: 

 Audit of School Fund Accounts for 3 schools under Local Authority 
control; and

 Grant certification for an Academy.

Costs and Budget Summary

11. Not applicable.

Page 34



Risk and Policy Implications

If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during 
reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and 
governance.

12.

Consultation

13. The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 35



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter one

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Foster Payments Where the Council places a child directly with foster carers, it pays them 
an allowance to cover the costs of caring for the child, with additional 
amounts linked to the child’s birthday for example. At the time of the audit, 
the Council paid fostering allowances to 170 foster carer households with 
payments amounting to approximately £220k per week. The audit focused 
on evaluating the financial management arrangements relating to the 
calculation and payment of foster care allowances.

In overall terms the audit concluded that there is a sound system of control 
in operation to manage risks effectively. One medium priority 
recommendation was made to ensure that staff continue to communicate 
changes in foster care placements on a timely basis to mitigate the risk of 
overpayments being made which then need to be recovered. 

Substantial M – 1,
L – 3

P
age 36



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Special 
Educational 

Needs (SEN) 
Funding

Special educational provision is the additional or different help given in 
school to children with special educational needs, where learning 
difficulties have been established. Schools receive additional funding to 
support this need with additional funding also available if a higher level of 
need is assessed. The objective of this audit was to identify how funding is 
being used by schools to meet the needs of the SEN children, with a view 
to identifying those interventions that were proving more effective and 
sharing good practice across all schools. 6 schools were visited as part of 
this review.

The review confirmed that overall arrangements in schools for using SEN 
funding appear to be working well. A range of interventions were being 
used to support SEN children and there is evidence that the interventions 
are being successful. The review did highlight some challenges which 
schools management will consider as part of future process reviews 
including:

 Attributing improvements in a child to a particular intervention can 
be difficult as a child will often receive a package of different 
interventions and this makes it difficult to know which of the 
interventions is the most effective. A review of the methods to 
capture and record such data may assist in enhancing these links; 
and

 There did not appear to be a consistent approach to how data was 
being recorded or how parents were being updated on their child’s 
progress, which links into the above point. 

Whilst no recommendations were made in view of the nature of this 
review, management will take on board the lessons learned to ensure any 
relevant best practice will be shared amongst schools.

Substantial Not applicable

P
age 37



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Corporate General Data 
Protection 

Regulations 
(GDPR) 

Arrangements

GDPR was introduced in May 2018 to update and harmonise data 
protection laws across all of the European Union. Significant financial and 
operational risks may arise in the event of non-compliance with GDPR. 
This audit focused on ensuring that appropriate arrangements are in place 
to manage and control the progress of the implementation of GDPR and to 
measure general compliance to the Regulations as far as reasonably 
practicable.

The audit confirmed that there was a good level of compliance with GDPR 
whilst also recognising that there are opportunities to improve certain 
processes. This aligned with the outcomes of the Information 
Commissioners Office audit in 2016 which provided a good level of 
assurance over the Authority’s data protection arrangements.

The high priority recommendation related to the need to develop the 
Council’s Corporate Retention Schedule relating to physical 
documentation to ensure it is fit for purpose and aligned with all current 
regulations. Other actions agreed included the need to:

 Complete remaining personal data audits within Service areas;
 Ensure contracts include appropriate references to the 

requirements of GDPR;
 Further review processes and training associated with Subject 

Access Requests to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of 
procedures; and

 Evaluate the role of the Data Protection Officer to ensure an 
appropriate balance between strategic and reactive work.

Given the significance of GDPR, this is an area that will continue to be 
evaluated by Internal Audit as part of the Annual Internal Audit Plan.

Adequate H – 1, 
M – 6 

P
age 38



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Annual Payroll 
Returns

The Payroll Section, Resources Directorate undertake the payment of 
salaries not only for administrative staff and teachers, but also for external 
agencies such as Rochdale Boroughwide Housing, Link4Life and other 
smaller organisations. At the end of each financial year, the payments that 
have been made in respect of pensions contributions for administrative 
staff are summarised and details entered onto returns for the ‘Greater 
Manchester Pension Fund - Year End Reconciliation Statement for 
2018/19’.  

Another return completed at the end of the Financial Year 2018/19 is the 
‘Teachers Pension Contributions for the Financial Year 2018/19’.  This 
return is made to the Teachers Pensions Agency and is compiled from the 
pension contributions from all teachers at schools within the Local 
Authority area (excluding academies).  Both these returns are signed by 
the Section 151 Officer.

Internal Audit was requested to undertake independent checks on the data 
supporting these returns for the 2018/19 tax year to confirm the integrity of 
the data and the accuracy of the information being reported.  The audit 
work performed highlighted some errors with regard to some pension 
contributions being deducted at the wrong percentage rate banding. 
However further testing indicated these were isolated errors as a result of 
a system related issue and there was no systematic breakdown in 
processes or controls. As such, the two returns were duly signed off and 
two recommendations arising from the audit have already been actioned 
by management. 

Substantial H – 2 

P
age 39



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Various Grant 
Certifications

Certain grants available to RBC require periodic certification to confirm that 
the grants have been spent in accordance with grant terms and conditions. 
These certifications generally require sign off by the Head of Internal Audit 
together with either the Chief Executive or Chief Finance Officer. During 
quarter one, the following grant certifications were signed off in this way: 

 Disabled Facilities Capital Grant Determination 2018/19; and
 Disabled Facilities Capital Grant Determination Additional Funding 

2018/19.

Internal Audit performed various independent checks to ensure that grant 
certifications could be signed off and no issues arose from this work.

Substantial None

P
age 40



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

4 Primary 
Schools

This comprised a review of the schools’ exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
All Saints Primary
Belfield Primary
Hamer Community Primary
Healey Primary

Whilst no high priority recommendations were made, a number of actions 
were agreed to improve processes and controls including ensuring that:

 The register of business interests is updated annually to ensure it 
remains up to date;

 Valid invoices are retained to support all claims for VAT;
 Cash income is banked promptly;
 The school development plan includes financial costs associated 

with the delivery of outcomes;
 School Charging policies are complete and up to date;
 Service level agreements are in place to facilitate the management 

of external services provided to schools;
 Appropriate segregation of duties are established to enhance 

controls over the use of credit cards and ensure they align with 
current guidance; and

 A Disposal Policy is in place to support the disposal of assets.

Substantial – 
2

Adequate – 2

M – 18,
L – 15 

P
age 41



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 9 SEPTEMBER 2019

Report Assurance Service High and Medium 
priority actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Cyber Security A Neighbourhoods 11 31/03/2018 11/01/2018 10 1

The one remaining action will 
be implemented when the new 
disaster recovery and backup 
solution is in place in autumn 

2019.

Highways Contract 
Management A Neighbourhoods 15 31/07/2017 06/09/2019 13 2

KPIs are still being developed 
but are due to be presented to 

the Management Board in 
October 2019. Also the 

Management Board are still 
pursuing the contractor to 
confirm if all original bid 

commitments have be fulfilled. 
Review of Compliance 
with Contract Procedure 
Rules

A Resources 3 31/05/2019    
To be followed up in 2019/20 

by Stockport MBC Internal 
Audit

Contracts Register A Resources 8 30/06/2019    Follow up in progress

Provider Portal 
Payments A Adult Care 6 30/06/2019 18/07/2019 3 3

Management performing 
reviews on individual providers 

with outcomes being 
monitored by Internal Audit.

Highways Winter 
Service S Neighbourhoods 11 31/08/2019 24/06/2019 5 6

Remaining actions will be 
embedded once new winter 
season activity is initiated. 

Further follow up to be done in 
quarter 3 of 2019/20

Pupil Premium Plus A Children’s 3 30/09/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20
Pen Pictures A Adult Care 6 30/09/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20
Data Integrity A Adult Care 3 30/09/2019  1  To be followed up in 2019/20

P
age 42



Report Assurance Service High and Medium 
priority actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Commercial Investment 
Fund A Economy 7 31/10/2019 29/04/2019 3 4

Deadlines extended to allow 
more time for certain actions 

to become embedded. Further 
follow up to be done in 

2019/20 

ContrOCC A Adult 2 30/11/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20

Rochdale Additional 
Needs Service A Children’s 4 31/12/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20

Town Centre 
Programme 
Management

A Economy 8 31/12/2019    To be followed up in 2019/20

Corporate GDPR/ Data 
Protection 
Arrangements

A Neighbourhoods 7 31/03/2020    To be followed up in 2019/20P
age 43



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 25 September 2019
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author Martin Nixon
Public/Private Document Public

Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2019/20

Executive Summary

1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 
during Quarter 1 of the 2019/20 year.

The new Pentana Risk software system was launched on 1st July 2019.  The 
new system will realise time savings, increased flexibility in report writing, and 
better ‘cloud-based’ coordination of shared Council/CCG risks.

Information regarding the most significant risks recorded under RBC Service 
and Integrated Health & Social Care risk registers is provided within the report 
below. 

The Insurance Team achieved a claims cost mitigation figure of £476,684.15 
for the quarter.

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of Members to confirm the level of assurance 
provided through the management of risk and insurance services.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and oversight of governance, to scrutinise Risk 
Management and Insurance Team coverage during the 2019/20 year for all 
Council Services.

Page 44

Agenda Item 8



Key Points for Consideration

4.

5.

5.1

5.2

Corporate Risk Register

The Leadership Team continue to proactively manage risks listed under the 
Corporate risk register. The Corporate risk register is attached as Appendix 1.

An exercise to review all risks under the register with the appropriate Directors 
is currently underway, under the direction of the Risk Manager.

Service Risk Management

Implementation of the Pentana Risk Software

Following development work by the Pentana Implementation Group, consisting 
of colleagues in the Risk Management, Corporate Policy, ICT Services and 
HMR CCG teams, the new Pentana Risk system was launched on 1st July 
2019. The new software is used for the monitoring of performance and risk 
outcomes across the Council and CCG.

All existing Council and Transformation risk data was migrated to Pentana to 
ensure there was no loss of access to historical risk information. User training 
has been delivered to over 40 risk owners allowing uninterrupted risk review 
activity in service teams. Discussions are underway with the supplier to 
overcome initial problems with on-screen visibility and reporting of risk control 
review dates, but this is anticipated to be a temporary issue only.

Integrated Care Risk Management

The project management team (PMO) of the Heywood Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) coordinated updates to the 
risk registers of the Transformation projects during Q1.

The usual updates to operational risks provided to the Integrated 
Commissioning Board (ICB) in Transformation Highlight reports have been 
suspended during the completion of ‘deep dive’ work to fully understand the 
status of the programme.

The following programme-wide risks are to be addressed as part of the deep 
dive review work during August.
 ‘Failure to close the financial gap’ still remains as the highest scoring risk. 

Mitigation work to address was escalated during July/August - 
- All contracts are now under review.
- The forecast out-turn position for Transformation is under review via the 

Rochdale Sustainability Group (RSG) and RSG working group.
- Tighter controls around budgetary management are being implemented.

 Identification and monitoring of cost deflections remains a challenge for the 
projects. CCG PMO are working with providers to improve the flow of data 
to enable more accurate reporting.

Page 45



5.3

6

6.1

Final recommendations from the deep dive review work were planned to be 
reviewed to understand affordability in line with the current financial position in 
September.

Risk Management Results

There are currently 3 Red risks within the risk registers of RBC Services’ to 
report -

Ref Service Risk Title

CSDR006
Children’s 
Services 
(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts the 
financial position of the Service and its ability 
to provide services

CSCR001 Children’s Social 
Care

Retain a workforce able to successfully deliver 
a quality Children’s Social Care service

CSCR002 Children’s Social 
Care

Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service 
continues to increase, leading to failure to 
manage within budget

Please note that variations in RAG risk scores should not be viewed purely as 
a reflection of the effectiveness of risk control activity - risk scoring is also 
influenced by the severity of risks associated with the different Services and 
their capacity to mitigate. Further details regarding the factors considered 
when scoring the risks and the mitigation actions being implemented are 
provided under Appendix 2.

Insurance Team

Performance
A summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from April 2019 to 
June 2019 is set out below.

The team received a total of 81 new claims notifications during quarter 1. This 
total can be divided between the various insurance classes – Highways (42), 
Motor (28), Other Public Liability (8), Employer’s Liability (1), Others (2). This 
figure is a reduction in comparison to the 196 notifications received during the 
severe Winter conditions of Q1 2017/18.

A total of 101 claims were closed by the team during quarter 1. This figure can 
be divided between the insurance classes - Highways (63), Motor (23), Other 
Public Liability (13), Employer’s Liability (2). Closed claims will largely not be 
the same incidents as the newly notified claims referred to above. The claims 
handling process can run over a period of months or years, and therefore the 
team are working on a combination of new and existing cases.

The claims cost mitigation figures displayed in the table below are calculated
by subtracting the final settled amounts for closed claims against the highest
reserve amounts for the same losses during the handling of the claims. These 

Page 46



6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

statistics are a useful measure of the level of challenge put forward by
the Insurance Team during their investigations, liaison with Council
Services, and joint work with solicitors to defend against legal proceedings.

Claims Cost Mitigation Table for 2019/20 Q1

Month Claims Closed Cost 
Mitigation

April 40 £178,100.57

May 33 £169,976.50

June 28 £128,607.08

Total 101 £476,684.15

The table shows that the Insurance Team achieved a total cost mitigation of 
£476,684.15 on settled claims costs during Q1. An example of a successful 
claims cost mitigation was a saving of £27,019, made as a result of risk 
assessment and training documentation supplied in support of our defence to 
an employee’s personal injury claim. 

Insurance Renewal 2019
The Insurance team secured the renewal of Rochdale Council’s programme of 
insurance policies effective from June 2019 at unchanged premium rates (in 
accordance with the long term agreement negotiated at the 2017 tender). The 
Senior Insurance Officer coordinated the notification of updated Council asset 
values and risk management details to our insurers. The continued stability of 
Insurance premiums is a good indication of our insurance partners’ satisfaction 
with the Council’s risk management procedures. Progress made to complete a 
Rochdale Highways plan - designed to reduce the risk of incidents related to 
pot-holes and other highways defects – was a significant factor in this.

Broker Tender 2019
A procurement tender will take place during September/October for insurance 
broker services to the Council. Rochdale benefits from the increased buying 
power of a collaborative contract with other GM local authorities. The 
Insurance team began preparation for the tender in April, with the successful 
contract due to commence on 1st November.

Reissue of the Insurance Manual
The Insurance Manual has been re-issued and been made available to all 
Council staff on the Rochdale BC intranet site. The manual provides an insight 
into the content of insurance policies, the responsibilities of managers to 
comply with policy conditions; and the procedures to be followed in the event 
of a claim.

Highways Investment
The Highways Service continue to implement the agreed Leader investment of 
£12m in carriageways and footways. This has been agreed as an ‘invest to 
save’ investment to reduce the risk of third party compensation claims caused 

Page 47



7

by the deteriorating highways infrastructure. The Insurance team provided 
guidance on claims hotspots as part of the process to prioritise problem 
locations.

£3.9m of investment was implemented in 2018/19, £3.0m implemented to date 
in 2019/20, with the remainder of the £12.0m to be spent during 2019/20 and 
2020/21. 

Unfortunately it is too early for the effect of improved highways conditions to 
have an impact on insurance claims statistics. The time lag caused by late-
reported claims and the duration of the claims process means that we will not 
see any evidence of the benefits for a number of years.

RBC have experienced a vastly lower level of Highways claims incurred during 
2018/19, in comparison to the Winter weather-related upturn in the previous 
year. This however is a result of the mild winter and is not a reflection of the 
investment implemented to date. 

Priorities for the Next Quarter

 Complete review of Corporate (Leadership) risk register.
 Agree and implement improvements to Pentana Risk software.
 Insurance broker tender to be completed in October.

Costs and Budget Summary

8. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council will 
be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. 

9.

Consultation

10. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 
agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 48



Appendix 1 11 September 2019

Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register Risk Summary

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

David Wilcock David Wilcock Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 06 Aug 19

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit   David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Oct 19

CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 

P
age 49



the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed annually, communicated and understood    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
annually   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2018/19 and 2019/20 leading to a failure 
in legal duty (Strategic) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Julie Murphy Julie Murphy Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

30 Apr 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 20

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and Members 
working together)   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

P
age 50



 *    CRR3010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 24 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Julie Murphy Julie Murphy Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Apr 2020

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 17

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers and Members 
working together)   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 20

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational)

P
age 51



Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Neil Thornton Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood   Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

01 Aug 2016

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Aug 16

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority with other 
Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Aug 16

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Aug 16

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution 
issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 01 Aug 16

CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

P
age 52



John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

01 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums.

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with Greater Manchester authorities to monitor and mitigate 
risks    

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    The partnership Consequence Management Group (CMG) exists to provide early 
identification and intervention on community tensions and develop positive community 
cohesion and diversionary activities to mitigate risks of escalation in tension. The CMG to 
inform and take direction from RBC and Partners command structure.

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members and Community 
Representatives   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

30 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in 
schools

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 53



CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sally McIvor Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

30 Aug 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge   Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sally McIvor Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated  

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Tracey Harrison Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Jan 2019

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated   Peter Gregory Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently   Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Aug 19

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated   Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Aug 19

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 25 Nov 19

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 25 Nov 19

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 19

P
age 54



P
age 55



Q1 2019/20 High-Scoring Service Risks
Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 

Score

CSDR006 Children’s Services 
(Directorate)

Failure to manage within budget impacts the financial position of the 
Service and its ability to provide services Gail Hopper 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score? Locally, predicted pressures are being experienced as a result of an increase in demand for children’s social care services generally, 
numbers of children subject to child protection plans, increases in care proceedings, the number of cared for children, continuing increase in demand for children with special 
educational needs and / or disabilities and unaccompanied asylum seeking children. This reflects the picture both regionally and nationally.

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk? A Business Case for increased resources in line with areas of increased demand in children’s social care has 
been agreed; this has been worked upon with Finance colleagues and has been considered at informal Cabinet, the ICB and is to be presented to Cabinet for a formal decision. A five year 
sustainability strategy has also been developed, with key components to increase placement sufficiency through innovation and market management.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The Senior Leadership Team regularly considers budget pressures collectively and in their separate management 
meetings. There are monthly meetings with the Chief Executive, the S151 Officer and Director of Resources, as well as regular meetings with the Leader and Portfolio Holder. This 
residual risk will be reviewed again at the end of Q1. Reduction in the risk score is dependent on the outcome of the Government Spending Review.

Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score

CSCR001 Children’s Social Care Retain a workforce able to successfully deliver a quality Children’s 
Social Care service. Jill McGregor 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  Recruitment continues to be a priority area; the turnover rate continues to be high in some fieldwork services. There continues to be 
high levels of mobility of social workers across the Greater Manchester area, and the work context is challenging due to the demand pressures and the nature of the work.

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk? A fortnightly Recruitment and Retention Group continues to be chaired by the Assistant Director; Detailed 
analysis and comparator mapping has been completed and a strategy to ensure Rochdale is the employer of choice and that recruits and retains has been developed and implemented. 
This includes increased financial investment in the service to support a reduction in social work caseloads and recently agreed revisions to social worker terms and conditions will support 
continued recruitment and retention. Rochdale is a pilot authority for implementing NAAS (the National Assessment and Accreditation System) for social workers / social work 
supervisors. There is a strong programme of support to enable practitioners to progress to accreditation.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? It is anticipated that the score set for this risk will begin to reduce towards the end of 2019/2020. Strategies have been 
developed and are now being implemented consistently which will support the workforce to become more stable.  Progress against the strategy is monitored as part of the 5 year 
Financial Strategy.

P
age 56



Risk ref Service Risk Risk Owner Impact Likelihood Residual Risk 
Score

CSCR002 Children’s Services Demand for a Children’s Social Care Service continues to increases, 
leading to failure to manage within budget

Jill McGregor / 
Sandra Bowness 4 4 16

 Explain the main reasons for the high risk score?  The growing child population in borough and growing demand is causing increased budget pressures in children’s social care and in the 
additional needs service (SEND). This reflects similar demands across the country. 91% of children’s services budgets overspent nationally in 2018/19. (Rochdale did not overspend last 
year.

 What have been the significant controls implemented to mitigate this risk? A five year sustainability strategy has been developed by reviewing and mapping levels of need and 
implications; reviewing the research and evidence base of what works; reviewing all children in external placements and working up a detailed investment strategy. This involves a 
Greater Manchester approach to implementing innovation programmes that have been successful elsewhere in the country. Progress is being made in Rochdale to develop these 
approaches, but will take time to deliver impact. One of the areas we cannot control is the inward migration, see below. The Family Service Model (FSM) and approach has been 
developed to manage demand through co-ordinated multi-agency early help.  The FSM has been developed as part of the transformation programme and predicted deflections and 
mainstreaming have not been realised to date.

 Are any reductions in the risk score anticipated in the future? The sustainability strategy will over time support greater likelihood of managing demand within the designated budget. 
What the service is unable to predict is those demands emerging from children new to the authority. In the period between September and December almost 500 children new to the 
country and to the borough required school places – what is not known about these children is what level of social care needs they may present moving forward. These increases have 
been experienced in the borough over the last 3 years, but the 18/19 figures are much higher than in previous years (50% increase).

P
age 57


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 External Audit Annual Audit Letter
	7 Internal Audit Quarter 1 Report 2019/20
	8 Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2019/20
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2019/20
	Append. 2 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q1 2019/20


